
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\04 08 2019 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

          
 
 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Neil Belenkie will call the meeting to order. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, April 8, 2019 
 Recommendation: 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, April 8, 2019 be approved as 

circulated. 
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, March 11, 2019 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held March 11, 2019 be 

adopted. 
3.2 Special Council Meeting, April 3, 2019 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Special Council Meeting held April 3, 2019 be adopted. 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
5. REPORTS 
5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, Verbal Report regarding an 

amendment to the Council Meeting schedule to change the Council Meeting from 
Monday, April 29, 2019 to Wednesday, April 24, 2019 
Recommendation: 
That Council approve an amendment to the Council Meeting schedule to change 
the Council Meeting from Monday, April 29, 2019 to Wednesday, April 24, 2019. 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

VILLAGE HALL 
April 8, 2019 

7:00 PM 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  April 8, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\04 08 2019 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5.2 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated April 8, 2019 regarding 
Memo from the District of North Vancouver Chief Administrative Officer to the 
Belcarra Chief Administrative Officer regarding Belcarra Water Supply Scenarios  

 Recommendation: 
 That Council receive for information the memo dated March 1, 2019 from the 
 District of North Vancouver Chief Administrative Officer to the Belcarra Chief 
 Administrative Officer regarding Belcarra Water Supply Scenarios 
5.3 Bernie Serné, Superintendent of Public Works, report dated April 8, 2019 

regarding West Road and Bedwell Bay Road – Guard Rails and Signage 
Request 

 Recommendation:  
 That staff install a hazard marker near the intersection of West Road and Bedwell 

Bay Road at a cost of approximately $400.00. 
5.4 Bernie Serné, Superintendent of Public Works, report dated April 8, 2019 

regarding Village of Belcarra Wildlife Vector Control (Bear) Bylaw No. 535, 2019 
Recommendation: 
That the Village of Belcarra Wildlife Vector Control (Bear) Bylaw No. 535, 2019 
be read a first, second and third time. 

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 
6.1 Councillor Clark, Summary of Town Hall Meeting held March 21, 2019 regarding 

Resident Only Parking 
6.2 Councillor Drake, Belcarra Day Committee, Feather Flags & Belcarra’s 40th 

Anniversary 
7. BYLAWS 
8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 

Recommendation: 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.13 be received. 

ACTION ITEMS 
8.1 Janet Andrews, Secretary – Treasurer, New Westminster & District Labour Council, 
 dated March 11, 2019 regarding the Declaration of April 28, 2019 as the official 
 “Day of Mourning for Workers Killed and Injured on the Job” 

Recommendation: 
 That Council declare April 28, 2019 as the official “Day of Mourning for Workers 
 Killed and Injured on the Job”. 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  April 8, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\04 08 2019 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

8.2 Suzana Cardoso, Development Assistant, Eagle Ridge Hospital Foundation, 
 dated March 18, 2019 regarding Eagle Ridge Hospital Foundation (ERHF) Silent 
 Auction Request 
 Recommendation:  

That Council donate an auction prize valued at $300 to the Evening of Caring 
Gala; and 
That a ticket for one Council member and their guest be purchased if requested. 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.3 Lisa Helps, Mayor, City of Victoria, copies of letters dated March 6, 7 & 13, 2019 
 to Premier John Horgan requesting favourable consideration and resolutions of 
 support which have been forwarded for Endorsement at the Union of BC 
 Municipalities (UBCM) Convention as follows: 

a) The Extension of Vacancy Taxation Authority to Local Governments 
b) Provincial Universal School Food Program 
c) Permanent Residents to Vote in BC Municipal Elections 
d) Safer Drug Supply to Save Lives in British Columbia 
e) Observed Inhalation Sites for Overdose Prevention 

8.4 Lisa Helps, Mayor, City of Victoria, a copy of a letter dated March 7, 2019 to          
 BC Municipalities and Regional Districts Requesting favourable consideration 
 and resolutions of support for Recovering Municipal Costs Arising from Climate 
 Change which, has been forwarded for Endorsement at the Union of BC 
 Municipalities (UBCM) Convention  
8.5 Lisa Helps, Mayor, City of Victoria, a copy of a letter dated March 13, 2019 to 
 Union of BC Municipalities (UBCM) Members Requesting favourable consideration 
 and resolutions of support for Shifting Investment to Low-Emission Transportation 
 which will be forwarded for Endorsement at the Union of BC  Municipalities 
 (UBCM) Convention 
8.6 Charlotte Dawe, Conservation & Policy Campaigner, Wilderness Committee, 
 dated March 14, 2019 regarding Support for the Creation of the South Okanagan 
 – Similkameen National Park Reserve (Full report available at the Village Office) 
8.7 Gene Sobolewski, Mayor, Bonnyville, Alberta, dated March 18, 2019 regarding an 
 Invitation to Join the Coalition of Canadian Municipalities for Energy Action 
8.8 Mike Hurley, Mayor, City of Burnaby, copy of a letter to Honourable Carole James 
 dated March 19, 2019 regarding Property Assessment and Taxation Systems (Full 
 report available at the Village Office) 
8.9 Mayor Phillip Germuth, District of Kitimat, dated March 25, 2019 regarding a 
 Request for Local Governments to Support C.O.R.E.Y Motorcycle Safety 
8.10 Tracey Takahashi, Deputy Corporate Officer, City of Port Moody, dated             
 March 27, 2019 regarding Support for a “Greenhouse Gas Limits for New Buildings” 
 Resolution (Full report available at the Village Office) 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  April 8, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\04 08 2019 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

8.11 Council Committee Meeting Minutes as follows: 
a) Water System Capacity for Fire Protection Committee Meeting Minutes –  

February 19, 2019 
b) Farrer Cove Committee Meeting Minutes – February 20, 2019 
c) Revenue Generation Committee Meeting Minutes – February 26, 2019 
d) Tree Committee Meeting Minutes – February 27, 2019 

8.12 Squamish Nation, Memorandum dated April 3, 2019 regarding Squamish Nation’s 
 Governance Structure, Designated Council Representatives, and Communications 
 Protocol  
8.13 Brian and Carol Hirsch, Belcarra Residents, dated April 3, 2019 regarding 
 Submission to Council regarding Short Term Rentals  

 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
 Recommendation: 
 That the April 8, 2019 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text



             
 
Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting for the Village of Belcarra held March 11, 2019 at the 
Municipal Hall, 4084 Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra, BC. 
 
Council in Attendance 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer  
Bernie Serné, Superintendent of Public Works 
Paula Richardson, Administrative Services Assistant 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Belenkie called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, March 11, 2019 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, March 11, 2019 be approved as 

circulated.  
CARRIED 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, February 25, 2019 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held February 25, 2019 be 
 adopted. 

CARRIED 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 No items presented. 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 

VILLAGE HALL 
 March 11, 2019 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.1



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  March 11, 2019 

Page 2 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\2019 03 11 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, a verbal report regarding appointment of 

Council members as Bylaw Enforcement Officers.  
 L. Dysart provided a verbal report regarding the appointment of Council members as 

Bylaw Enforcement Officers. Considerable discussion ensued with regard to Council 
members being appointed as Bylaw Enforcement Officers. 
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
That Mayor Belenkie, Councillor Begg and Councillor Clark be appointed as Bylaw 
Enforcement Officers. 

The motion was WITHDRAWN 
with consent of the Mover and Seconder 

L. Dysart advised that the Bylaw Enforcement Officer also works at the Waste and 
Recycle Depot (WARD). When she is at work, the Bylaw Enforcement Officer will be 
available for Council members to contact when a traffic violation is observed. 

5.2 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated March 11, 2019 regarding 
Hamber Island Subdivision Application – Resolution to authorize Statutory Rights of 
Way for drainage, snow clearing, and turnaround 

 L. Dysart outlined the Subdivision Application for Hamber Island and the Resolution to 
authorize the Statutory Rights of Way for drainage, snow clearing and turnaround. 
Discussion ensued with Council asking pertinent questions. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That Council authorize the Mayor and Chief Administrative Officer to sign two Statutory 
 Rights of Way documents related to the proposed subdivision of the Saito Lands, which 
 consist of the following existing lots:  

- DL 4992 Group 1 NWM District  
- DL 4991 Group 1 except part subdivided by plan 52302 
- Lot 38 DL 229 and 4991 Group 1 NWP 52302 
- Lot 11 Block 10 DL 229 Group 1 NWP 1095 

CARRIED 
5.3 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated March 11, 2019 regarding a 
 Proposed Designated Anchorage Area (DAA) Program 

L. Dysart outlined the report. Mayor Belenkie noted he had discussed this matter with 
Naomi Horsford, Manager, Municipal and Stakeholder Relations at the Port of 
Vancouver. Discussion ensued. 

 Moved by:   Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the Chief Administrative Officer work in a collaborative manner with             
 Naomi Horsford, Manager, Municipal and Stakeholder Relations, Port of     
 Vancouver, to bring back a Council report and a proposed contract on developing       
 a Designated Anchorage Area (DAA) Program for Bedwell Bay, and other potential 
 areas.     

CARRIED 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  March 11, 2019 

Page 3 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\2019 03 11 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

5.4 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated March 11, 2019 regarding 
 Resident Use of the Village Hall 
 L. Dysart outlined the Resident Use of the Village Hall report. Council discussed security 
 of the office and protecting the server equipment located in a closet room in the Village 
 Hall. L. Dysart noted that additional security measures are being implemented. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the Chief Administrative Officer continue to work towards implementing a 
 Resident Use of the Village Hall Plan; and 
 That the Plan and Terms of Use for the Village Hall be prepared for Council 
 approval. 

CARRIED 
 

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 
6.1 Speculation Tax 

Mayor Belenkie outlined progress to date with regard to the Speculation Tax. Significant 
media coverage has taken place regarding the efforts of the Mayor and Residents.  

6.2 Metro Vancouver 
Mayor Belenkie provided an update on meetings with Metro Vancouver and TransLink. 

6.3 Council Committees 
Council Committee Representatives provided updates as follows: 
Councillor Begg – Water Committee 
Councillor Clark – Tree Committee 
Councillor Drake – Belcarra Day Committee 
Councillor Wilder – Revenue Committee & Farrer Cove Committee 
It was noted that approved Committee Minutes will be included on Council Agendas for  
information.  
 

7. BYLAWS 
7.1 Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 530, 2019 
 L. Dysart noted that the Zoning Amendment Bylaw received first and second reading 
 on February 11, 2019. The notice for the Zoning Amendment Bylaw appeared in the 
 TriCity News as required by the Local Government Act. 

Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

 That “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 530, 2019”     
be read a third time; and 

 That “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 530, 2019”    
be adopted. 

CARRIED 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  March 11, 2019 

Page 4 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\2019 03 11 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

7.2 Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial Plan 2019 – 2023 Bylaw No. 531, 2019  
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
That “Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial Plan 2019 – 2023 Bylaw No. 531, 2019” be 
adopted. 

CARRIED 
7.3 Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw     

No. 532, 2019 
 L. Dysart outlined a clerical error on the Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 

Amendment Bylaw No. 532, 2019 that has been corrected.  
Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

 That “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw 
No. 532, 2019” be adopted 

CARRIED 
8. CORRESPONDENCE / PROCLAMATIONS 
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.4 be received. 

 CARRIED 
INFORMATION ITEMS  

8.1 Danyta Welch, Manager, Local Government Program Services, UBCM, dated 
 February 21, 2019 regarding 2018 Asset Management Planning Program  (Municipal 
 Roads Condition Assessment – Phase 2) 
8.2 Honourable Selina Robinson, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing, dated 
 February 22, 2019 regarding TransLink 
8.3 Jay Sharpe, Fire Chief, Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department, dated March 6, 2019 
 regarding 2018 Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department Call-Out Statistics fire  
8.4 Sandra Chapman, Belcarra Resident, dated March 7, 2019 regarding New Parking 
 Bylaw  
9. NEW BUSINESS 
9.1 Resident Only Parking  
 Councillor Drake noted that deferral of the Council Report, dated February 12, 2019 
 regarding Residential Only Parking within the Village resulted in discomfort amongst 
 Council. 
 Discussion ensued with regard to affirming the ability of Council members to have clear 
 discussion and to be able to express their views without criticism. As a newly elected 
 Council working together for four months, they agreed to be respectful of others views 
 and perspectives. 
 Mayor Belenkie noted that he will lead by example. 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  March 11, 2019 

Page 5 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\2019 03 11 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD  
 Mary Begg, Belcarra Resident, expressed her appreciation to staff for all their work on 
 setting up the Council Committees. 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the March 11, 2019 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 8:15 pm. 

CARRIED 
 
Certified Correct: 
 
 
 

 
    
Neil Belenkie  
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



             
 
Minutes of the Special Council Meeting for the Village of Belcarra held April 3, 2019 at the 
Municipal Hall, 4084 Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra, BC. 
 

Council in Attendance 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer  
Paula Richardson, Administrative Services Assistant 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 Mayor Belenkie called the meeting to order at 2:00 pm. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Special Council Meeting, April 3, 2019 

Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the agenda for the Special Council Meeting, April 3, 2019 be approved as  

circulated.  
 CARRIED 

3. REPORTS 
3.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated April 3, 2019 regarding a 

‘Planning and Building Inspection Agreement’ with the Village of Anmore 
 L. Dysart outlined the report. Discussion ensued with regard to the Building Inspector 

who will be on vacation. This contract allows staff from the Village of Anmore to assist 
with a pilot project in his absence. An amendment to the Fees and Charges Bylaw 
allows for contracted work to be charged back to the builder / resident. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That Council approve a ‘Planning and Building Inspection Agreement’ between the 

Village of Anmore and the Village of Belcarra; and 
 That the Mayor and Chief Administrative Officer be authorized to sign the Agreement.  

CARRIED 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MINUTES 

VILLAGE HALL 
 April 3, 2019 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.2



SPECIAL COUNCIL MINUTES  April 3, 2019 

Page 2 of 2 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\2019 04 03 - Special Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

4. ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 

 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the April 3, 2019 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 2:13 pm. 

CARRIED 
 

Certified Correct: 
 
 
 

 
    
Neil Belenkie  
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\2019 04 08 Memo from DNV regarding 
Belcarra Water Supply Scenarios.docx 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
 
Date: April 8, 2019  

From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 

Subject: Memo from the District of North Vancouver Staff to Belcarra 
Chief Administrative Officer regarding Belcarra Water Supply 
Scenarios 

 
 
Recommendation  
That Council receive for information the memo dated March 1, 2019 from the District of North 
Vancouver staff to the Belcarra Chief Administrative officer regarding Belcarra Water Supply 
Scenarios 
 
Purpose 
To provide Council with an overview of potential water servicing scenarios related to the 
Belcarra Water Supply Scenarios.  
   
Background 
Mayor Belenkie and the Chief Administrative Officer met with the Chief Administrative Officer 
from the District of North Vancouver with a view to receiving an overview of potential water 
servicing scenarios to and for the Village.   
The main topics discussed included: 

a) Development Impact 
b) Parks Impact  
c) Fire fighting  

 
It is noted in the memo that assumptions have been made when considering these concepts which 
will likely impact technical feasibility and costs estimates.   
 
 
Attachment A – District of North Vancouver Memo 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.2



prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment A





J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\2019 04 08 West Road & Bedwell Bay Road - Guard Rail & 
Signage Request.docx 

    COUNCIL REPORT     

Date:  April 8, 2019 

From:  Bernie Serné, AScT, Superintendent of Public Works 

Subject: West Road and Bedwell Bay Road - Guard Rail and Signage Request 

 

Recommendation 

That staff install a hazard marker near the intersection of West Road and Bedwell Bay Road at a cost of 
approximately $400.00.  

Background 

Staff received a letter dated March 8, 2019 requesting Guardrail and Signage at Bedwell Bay Road and 
West Road. 

The Village in 2018 started a 3 year program installing guardrails along Bedwell Bay road at a cost of 
$30,000.00.  The project is 50% funded by Translink through the Major Road Network and Bike (MRNB) 
grant in the locations identified in the 2017 Road Asset Management Plan.  Five locations of guardrail 
were installed in 2018, with others planned in 2019 and 2020. 

During the snow event on February 22, 2019 a vehicle having trouble navigating Bedwell Bay Road slid 
off onto West Road.  The Village has received a communication from a concerned resident asking if 
guardrail could be installed in this location.  Approximately 24M (80’) of guardrail could be installed at 
an estimated cost of $8,000. 

Historically vehicles have gone off Bedwell Bay Road in many locations, generally attributed to speed 
and inattentiveness.  Therefore, guardrails cannot be placed in every location where vehicle have gone 
off the road and must be reviewed by either a study or a review. 

Conclusion 

The BC Ministry Of Transportation and Infrastructure Roadside Barrier Index was applied to this location 
and concluded it did not warrant the installation of a guardrail.  The roadside drop off was marginal and 
traffic volumes were low.  Advance signage is already in place to warn drivers of the curve and side road. 

Bedwell Bay Road is on a down grade and cambered towards West Road which may exacerbate the 
driving condition.  Having West Road susceptible to vehicles sliding off Bedwell Bay Road is not ideal, but 
manageable at proper speeds and equipment. 

Options 

Install hazard marker and 24 meters of guard rail for approximately $8,400.00. 

Attachments: 

a) Letter from resident dated March 8, 2019 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.3



prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment A









     COUNCIL REPORT     

Date:  April 8, 2018 

From:  Bernie Serné, AScT, Superintendent of Public Works 

Subject: Village of Belcarra Wildlife and Vector Control (Bear) Bylaw No. 535, 2019 

 

 
Recommendation 

That the Village of Belcarra Wildlife and Vector Control (Bear) Bylaw No. 535, 2019 be read a 
first, second and third time. 

Background 

When wildlife issues occur in Belcarra, staff direct the caller with the information to the 
Provincial Wildlife Service.  Many referrals are received by the Conservation Office and priority 
is established (i.e. bears near schools etc.).  A bear wandering down a road looking food is 
normally not considered a high risk.  A reduction in Conservation Officers plus a change in 
legislative focus means it is unlikely that Conservation Officer will respond to report of a bear 
sighting.  It is important that residents become Bear Aware and ensure that their behaviour 
does not exacerbate the problem, such as leaving garbage out. 

Excellent sources of the information on this subject are: the BC Ministry of Forests, Lands, 
Natural Resource Operations and Rural Development Bear Smart website, the Bears In BC 
website, and the Belcarra website summary page on the Do’s and Don’ts of living with bears. 

The Provincial “Wildlife Act” deals specifically with attractants and empowers a Conservation 
Officer to ticket offenders.  When residents notice improperly stored or loose garbage they may 
take photos then / or make calls for enforcement to the Provincial Conservation Officer at           
1-877-952-7277.  There must be proof of where an attractant originates. 

Bylaws from Coquitlam, Maple Ridge, Port Coquitlam and Port Moody mostly deal with vermin 
(“Vectors”), or with the Municipalities curbside collection and garbage cans attracting Wildlife, 
which in turn makes it easier to identify the source of the attractant.  A Village bylaw that 
resembles other Municipalities and Province’s would need to clearly establish the source and 
may require trained personnel - and that can be easier said than done. 

 

 

 

http://wlapwww.gov.bc.ca/eeeb/index.htm
http://www.qp.gov.bc.ca/statreg/reg/W/Wildlife/Wildlife338_82/338_82.htm
http://wlapwww.gov.bc.ca/eeeb/info/bearaware/home/
http://www.bearsinbc.com/index.html
http://www.belcarra.ca/vob-bear-safety.htm
prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.4



Report to Council 
Bernie Serné, Superintendent of Public Works 
Village of Belcarra Wildlife and Vector (Bear) Control Bylaw No. 535, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\2019 04 08 Village of Belcarra Wildlife and Vector Control 
(Bear) Bylaw No. 535, 2019.docx 

Conclusion 

Wildlife matters are administered by the Provincial Wildlife Act and enforced by Conservation 
Officers trained and equipped to deal with enforcement and dangerous wildlife. 

“Bear and other Wildlife Awareness / Village Pride” did not garner many votes (1 or 3) at the 
Town Hall meetings nor is it included in the 2019 Corporate Strategic Plan. 
 
Attachments: 

1) Village of Belcarra Wildlife and Vector (Bear) Control Bylaw No. 535, 2019 

 
 



 

 

            
 

A BYLAW FOR THE PREVENTION OF WILDLIFE ATTRACTANTS AND VECTOR 
CONTROL AGAINST THE SPREAD OF DISEASES 

WHEREAS pursuant to Part 2, Div. 1, Sec 8 (3) (k), and Part 3 (Div. 6 (47)) of the Community 
Charter, Council for the Village of Belcarra has authority to regulate in relation to animals;  

AND WHEREAS the Council for the Village of Belcarra considers that it is desirable to protect 
the health of the public by requiring owners and occupiers of property in the Village to prevent 
their property from becoming infested by vectors that may spread disease; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council for the Village of Belcarra in open meeting lawfully assembled, 
enacts as follows: 

1. Citation 
1.1 This bylaw may be cited as the “Wildlife and Vector Control Bylaw No. 535, 2019” 
 
2.  Severability 
2.1  If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the 

invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been 
adopted without the severed section, subsequent, paragraph, subparagraph, clause or 
phrase. 

 
3. Definitions 
3.1 In this bylaw: 

“Attractant” means any substance which could reasonably be expected to attract Wildlife 
or does attract Wildlife including but not limited to household refuse, kitchen waste, food 
products, beverage containers, barbecue grills, pet food, bird feed, diapers, grease barrels, 
fruit, oil and other petroleum products and chemical products;  
“Village” means the Village of Belcarra;  
“Owner” means any person who is the registered owner, or owner under agreement, of real 
property, and includes any person in actual or apparent possession of real property under a 
lease, licence or other agreement with another owner;  
“Parcel” means any lot, block or other area in which land is held or into which it is subdivided, 
but does not include a highway; 
“Pathogen” means an organism capable of causing disease in humans, animals or plants; 
“Property” means any parcel of land in the Village; 
“Receptacle” means a household, light commercial, municipal, yard waste or special  
receptacle; 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
WILDLIFE AND VECTOR CONTROL (BEAR) 

BYLAW NO. 535, 2019 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



Village of Belcarra Wildlife and Vector Control (Bear) Bylaw No. 535, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\Bylaw 535, 2019 Wildlfie and Vector (Bear) 
Control.docx 

 
“Vector” means a carrier organism that is capable of transmitting a pathogen from one facility, 
waste source, product or organism to another facility, waste source, product or organism 
including but not limited to mice, rats and mosquitoes; 
“Wildlife” means birds and any mammal not normally domesticated, including but not limited 
to bears, bobcats, cougars, coyotes, foxes, racoons, deer and skunks; 
“Wildlife Resistant Container” means a solid waste container and device whose material and 
construction is of sufficient strength and design so as to prevent access by Wildlife during 
storage and which has been accepted as such by the British Columbia Conservation Foundation; 
“Wildlife Resistant Enclosure” means a fully enclosed structure consisting of walls, roof and 
door(s) made of sufficient design and strength so as to prevent access by Wildlife and for clarity 
includes garage, shed or other structure that is inaccessible to Wildlife. 

4. Prohibitions 
4.1   No Owner or Occupier of Property within the Village shall cause, permit or allow a 

nuisance to be caused by the presence of Wildlife or Vectors on that Property. 
4.2   No Owner or Occupier of Property shall cause, permit or allow: 

a. any building or improvement; 
b. any brush, trees, weeds or other growths; 
c. any water, whether moving or standing; or 
d. any other condition on that Property to provide food, shelter, or breeding 

conditions    
that could attract Wildlife or a Vector. 

4.3  Except as provided in section 4.4, no person shall knowingly or willingly feed, or in 
 any manner provide or furnish access to food or any other edible substance, to any 
 Wildlife. 
4.4  Bird feeders must be suspended on a cable or other device and in such a manner 
 that they are inaccessible to Wildlife other than birds. The area below a bird feeder 
 shall be kept free of the accumulation of seed and debris from the bird feeder at all 
 times. 
4.5  Every Owner or Occupier of Property within the Village shall ensure that: 

a) all fruit on trees or bushes be harvested immediately upon ripening; 
b) all fallen fruit from trees or bushes be removed immediately; 
c) bee hives are inaccessible to Wildlife; 
d) grease containers are inaccessible to Wildlife; 
e) outdoor refrigerators or freezers are inaccessible to Wildlife; 
f) dairy products and proteins are not put into compost piles; 
g) garbage and organic containers are inaccessible to Wildlife; and 
h) Wildlife resistant containers that are stored outside on the Property are locked.  

4.6 Every Owner or Occupier of Property within the Village shall prevent or cause to be 
 prevented the infestation by vermin or other destructive insects or animals. 

 

 



Village of Belcarra Wildlife and Vector Control (Bear) Bylaw No. 535, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\Bylaw 535, 2019 Wildlfie and Vector (Bear) 
Control.docx 

 

5. Offence and Penalty 
5.1 Every person who violates a provision of this bylaw, or who consents, allows or permits an 

act or thing to be done in violation of a provision of this bylaw, or who neglects to or 
refrains from doing anything required to be done by a provision of this bylaw, is guilty of an 
offence and is liable to the penalties imposed under this bylaw, and is guilty of a separate 
offence each day that a violation continues to exist. 

5.2  Every person who commits an offence is liable for a fine of up to $500.00 and not  
exceeding the maximum allowed by the Local Government Bylaw Notice Act. 

 
 
READ A FIRST TIME on       

READ A SECOND TIME on  

READ A THIRD TIME on 

ADOPTED by the Council on 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________                                                _______________________                                                                         
Neil Belenkie              Lorna Dysart 
Mayor               Chief Administrative Officer 
 

 

 

 

This is a certified true copy of Village of Belcarra  
Wildlife and Vector (Bear) Control Bylaw No. 535, 2019 
 
_______________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 
 



 
 
 
 

  
 

 
Residents Present: 47 
Start Time: 7:00 pm 
Adjourned at 8:50 pm 
 
Recommendations: see page 9 
 
The topic of discussion was Resident Only Parking (“ROP”) within the Village.  This item was 
deferred at the Council Meeting held February 25, 2019 in order for Council to obtain resident 
feedback, options and solutions. (Agenda Item 5.2, A & B). 
 
The increase in the amount of visitors coming to Belcarra Regional Park has brought issues 
relating to parking around the Village. This increase in traffic has created inconvenience for some 
residents while causing safety concerns for others. 
 
At the Town Hall meeting, Residents were encouraged to find and discuss different options to 
deal with these issues.  In addition to discussion of ROP within the Village, the following were 
suggested as possible solutions: 

• seasonal Resident Only Parking (e.g. May 1 to September 30) 
• address problematic areas only while leaving the rest of the Village status-quo 
• status-quo (i.e. no change) for the whole Village 

 
Upon some discussion, it was decided that Seasonal ROP would be difficult to enforce. This may 
confuse people that visit the Village all year and the added expense to put new signs and replace 
the existing ones would be cost prohibitive. The attendees agreed to focus on the remaining 
options.  
 
The following suggestions and concerns were brought forward by the residents in attendance: 
 

• Focus only on problematic areas making them resident or permit parking only  
• Have a tow truck called in during our busiest days in addition to the Bylaw Officer 
• Improve the parking pass system to allow for more flexibility; have the passes serial 

numbered as opposed to license plate number. The permit should be transferable so 
people may use the same pass in different cars. 

• The number of permits should not be limited in order to provide for guests, etc. 
• Enforce the signs that are already in place  
• It was pointed out by many how this is just an issue only during a few weeks out of the 

year for such radical solution like Resident Only Parking 
• Concerns about staff having to spend too much time issuing and managing permits for the 

whole village 
• ROP is too awkward and too restrictive 
• Concerns and uncertainty about Port Moody’s plans to remove a considerable amount of 

parking spots by Sasamat Lake 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Town Hall Summary – March 21, 2019 
Hosted by Councillor Carolina Clark 

Resident Only Parking Within the Village 
 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
6.1



 
Town Hall Summary – March 21, 2019 

Resident Only Parking Within the Village 
Page 2 of 9 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\2019 03 21 Town Hall Summary - Resident Only Parking 
.docx 

• Some pointed out that we are not a gated community i.e. we do not live in an exclusive 
resort 

• Trial run for problematic parking areas only 
• Questions arose of the tickets issued to date what was the ratio of staff time vs revenue; 

cost effective? 
• Staff in the Kubota should issue tickets during their rounds, especially on days where our 

Bylaw Officer is not available 
• Explore turning the old tennis court into a parking lot (belongs to Metro Vancouver) 
• More education for non-residents to use Transit 
• Dialogue with Anmore and Deep Cove as to how they are handling permit parking and 

signage 
• Educate residents on Marine Avenue between Young Road & Kelly not to park on Marine 

Avenue but to use their driveways (some residents were asked to move their vehicles as 
they were not Marine Avenue residents) – Marine Avenue is municipal land and not 
exclusive except where permit only 

• Not many complaints on Marine Avenue north of Kelly Road - not problematic on the street 
with exception being the turn around and lower Tatlow Trail 

• Make it clear e.g. paint white lines at the bus area at Salish/Robson to distinguish where 
parking would be permitted 

• Issuing tickets should be practical; unusual or non-sensical ticketing serves no purpose 
and should be avoided 

 
After a lot of discussion majority of the residents in attendance agreed that Council should address 
the problematic areas only, while leaving the rest of the Village on status-quo. The residents also 
recognized that enforcement is the key to make sure we will be able to solve this problem 
regardless of which direction Council decides to take.  
 
Residents of South Marine Avenue spoke on how they rely on the road shoulder parking since 
their properties have no on-property parking; their families have been there since 1950’s.  They 
commended the Village for putting the ROP but they suggested aggressive towing enforcement, 
particularly on summer weekends. They also recommended a sign at the entrance of West Road 
stating “No Public Parking”. 

 
After lengthy discussion, the majority of residents in attendance agreed that Council should 
address the problematic areas only, while leaving the rest of the Village as status-quo. The 
residents also recognized that enforcement is the key to make sure we will be able to solve this 
problem regardless of which direction Council decides to take.  
 
The following roads were identified as problematic areas that should be addressed: 
 

• Midden Road 
• South Marine 
• Bedwell Bay – between the tennis courts and Midden Rd 
• Belcarra Bay 

 
At the end of the night the residents were asked to vote on their favorite option by a show of 
hands.  The results were: 

• Status-quo: 2 votes 
• Address Problematic areas only: 39 votes 
• Resident Only Parking throughout the Village: 0 votes 

A small number of residents did not vote. 
 



 
Town Hall Summary – March 21, 2019 

Resident Only Parking Within the Village 
Page 3 of 9 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\2019 03 21 Town Hall Summary - Resident Only Parking 
.docx 

Due to school spring break, a large number of residents were not able to attend the meeting, so 
they expressed their concerns and suggestions via email, phone calls or Messenger.  An 
overwhelming majority of those residents spoke in favor of addressing the problematic areas only. 
Not one was in favour of ROP. 
 
Below are some suggestions from residents that could not attend the meeting: 

• Have a ‘drop-off’ spot close to the water access zones for launching kayaks and canoes, 
for residents and general public 

• Request from Metro Vancouver Parks for signage to be placed before the 3-way stop on 
Bedwell Bay that states ‘PARKING AND ACCESS ONLY for Belcarra Park, Jug Island 
and all trails directing traffic to Tum-Tumay-Wheuton Drive to alleviate visitors from 
entering the Village 

• Have the old windshield stickers back 
 
SIGNAGE:   
 
There was a lot of discussion regarding no parking signs. It was explained to the residents that it 
is up to the municipality to decide how many signs should be placed and where. We can place as 
many or as little signs as we want. That being said, Councillor Clark and Councillor Wilder 
informed the residents that after a lengthy discussion with the Superintendent of Public Works 
and the Chief Administrative Officer, it was advised that one sign at the entrance of the Village 
would not be enough to efficiently enforce ROP. Staff also informed that signs should follow the 
Ministry of Transportation and Highways guideline, which is what most municipalities do, with No 
Parking or Permit Only signs placed at intervals of 40m (for 50KM zones minimum 40m) 
depending on visibility and road conditions.  
 
Councillor Clark contacted other municipalities to learn more on how they enforce their ROP or 
permit parking areas, and they all seem to follow the same guideline staff suggested we do, that 
is with signs placed every 30m-40m with their residential parking permit displayed on their vehicle 
dashboard.  
 
Please refer to end of report for pictures from other municipalities signs. 
 
BYLAW: 
 
In 2018, the previous Council implemented a new “Traffic and Parking Regulation Bylaw No. 518, 
2018” and “Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 520, 2018” enabling staff to staff to enforce 
parking offenders by issuing tickets for violations. These Bylaws were written in a way that allows 
the Superintendent of Public Works to place, replace or alter any traffic signs in any location, 
without Council approval or any amendments to the parking bylaw.  
 
It was noted that if Council decides to go with the option of addressing problematic areas only, 
then no amendments to the existing bylaw are necessary. 
 
If Council decides to go with the Resident Only Parking, the existing bylaw will need to be 
amended. 
 
The residents in attendance were advised that a full report would be presented at the next Council 
meeting and published on the website with the agenda. 
 
I would like to thank the residents who attended the Town Hall meeting as well as the ones who 
took their time to send in feedback via email, phone calls, etc. 
 



 
Town Hall Summary – March 21, 2019 

Resident Only Parking Within the Village 
Page 4 of 9 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\2019 03 21 Town Hall Summary - Resident Only Parking 
.docx 

 
I also would like to thank Councillor Bruce Drake for all his help setting up the hall and to Councillor 
Liisa Wilder for assisting me in hosting this meeting as well as taking the minutes. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
 

     Anmore

Anmore has signs all over the village. They 
were placed 40 m or so apart. Nearly every side street has a bigger sign stating: 
‘absolutely no street or shoulder parking anywhere you will be towed’ once you entered 



 
Town Hall Summary – March 21, 2019 

Resident Only Parking Within the Village 
Page 5 of 9 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\2019 03 21 Town Hall Summary - Resident Only Parking 
.docx 

the streets you will find many more smaller signs with the No Parking symbol and 
arrows. They are also placed every 30m or so. Every street there is like that. There are 
no signs at the entrance of the village that states “Resident Parking only”. On Sunnyside 
Road and East Road you will find many more no parking signs, also placed every 30m 
or so from each other. 

 

 
 



 
Town Hall Summary – March 21, 2019 

Resident Only Parking Within the Village 
Page 6 of 9 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\2019 03 21 Town Hall Summary - Resident Only Parking 
.docx 

Anmore  
 
Deep Cove 

Deep Cove, sign placed at the entrance of a 
street that allows resident only parking. Along that same street, only one small block 
long, there are many other smaller signs. I counted 21 regulatory signs just for that one 
block. 



 
Town Hall Summary – March 21, 2019 

Resident Only Parking Within the Village 
Page 7 of 9 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\2019 03 21 Town Hall Summary - Resident Only Parking 
.docx 

Deep Cove – Resident parking pass 
 
 

 



 
Town Hall Summary – March 21, 2019 

Resident Only Parking Within the Village 
Page 8 of 9 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\2019 03 21 Town Hall Summary - Resident Only Parking 
.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town Hall Summary – March 21, 2019 

Resident Only Parking Within the Village 
Page 9 of 9 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\04 08 2019\2019 03 21 Town Hall Summary - Resident Only Parking 
.docx 

 

Deep Cove, 2hr parking signs along the main road. 
 
 
Recommendations: 
 
It was noted that after receiving a lot of feedback from residents, my recommendation is 
to address only the problematic areas. 

1) Midden Road – Resident and Permit Parking only on both sides of the street; 
2) Bedwell Bay Road – from after the Tennis Courts all the way down to Midden 

Road, place No Parking signs on both or only one side of the road; 
3) South and West Marine Avenue – more enforcement for the current Resident 

Only Parking area of Marine Avenue as well as the emergency turn around; 
4) Belcarra Bay Road – allow parking only where you can fit a car with the wheels 

off the pavement. Parking Off Pavement and No Parking signs; 
5) Staff to contact Metro Parks for a new, more detailed sign to replace the current 

signage at the Belcarra Park Thermal Plant. A sign stating Parking and Access 
Only for Belcarra Park, Jug Island and all trails, at Metro Parks expense; 

6) Parking Passes – provide stickers to residents if that is the preference. Additional 
parking pass system that is not specific to any vehicle plate number but could be 
transferred from car to car, allowing more flexibility for residents who own more 
than one vehicle and may be used by their visitors; 

7) Develop an agreement with a towing company to remove vehicles parked in the 
turnarounds or anywhere that may impede emergency vehicles 

8) Approve the purchase of approximately 10 signs at the cost of $325.00 per sign 
for a total of $3,250.00. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



prichardson
Typewritten Text
6.2



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3 a)





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3 b)



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3 c)



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3 d)





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3 e)





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.4



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.5



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.6



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.7





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.8





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.9





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.10





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.11 a)







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.11 b)







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.11 c)







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.11 d)







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.12





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.13






	3.1 2019 03 11 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Moved by:  Councillor Drake
	Certified Correct:

	3.2 2019 04 03 - Special Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Certified Correct:

	5.2 2019 04 08 Memo from DNV regarding Belcarra Water Supply Scenarios.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT

	5.3 2019 04 08 West Road & Bedwell Bay Road - Guard Rail & Signage Request.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date:  April 8, 2019
	From:  Bernie Serné, AScT, Superintendent of Public Works
	Subject: West Road and Bedwell Bay Road - Guard Rail and Signage Request
	Recommendation
	Background
	Staff received a letter dated March 8, 2019 requesting Guardrail and Signage at Bedwell Bay Road and West Road.
	The Village in 2018 started a 3 year program installing guardrails along Bedwell Bay road at a cost of $30,000.00.  The project is 50% funded by Translink through the Major Road Network and Bike (MRNB) grant in the locations identified in the 2017 Roa...
	During the snow event on February 22, 2019 a vehicle having trouble navigating Bedwell Bay Road slid off onto West Road.  The Village has received a communication from a concerned resident asking if guardrail could be installed in this location.  Appr...
	Conclusion
	Options
	Attachments:

	5.4 2019 04 08 Village of Belcarra Wildlife and Vector Control (Bear) Bylaw No. 535, 2019.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date:  April 8, 2018
	From:  Bernie Serné, AScT, Superintendent of Public Works
	Subject: Village of Belcarra Wildlife and Vector Control (Bear) Bylaw No. 535, 2019
	Recommendation
	Background
	When wildlife issues occur in Belcarra, staff direct the caller with the information to the Provincial Wildlife Service.  Many referrals are received by the Conservation Office and priority is established (i.e. bears near schools etc.).  A bear wander...
	Excellent sources of the information on this subject are: the BC Ministry of Forests, Lands, Natural Resource Operations and Rural Development Bear Smart website, the Bears In BC website, and the Belcarra website summary page on the Do’s and Don’ts of...
	Conclusion
	Attachments:
	1) Village of Belcarra Wildlife and Vector (Bear) Control Bylaw No. 535, 2019




